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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of National Arts BEmREtEBFRAR(ARRNESZE (£
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) FEDRMMARARENBAR(SBIAEEDE
announces the unaudited consolidated results of the EZE-RAFANAZTAEANEARAZREEZLES
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ¥E ER-T-NFRBAZEBRHETOT:

the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2015,
together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2014 as follows:

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR Z Gk 1E 2 B LAt 4 i W 2 3%

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June

BESA=+HILE=ZEA BE/A=+HILERMEAR

2015 2014 2015 2014

—¥-1F Sk —T—AF —E-mE

Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FER FET FHET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ) (REE=Z) (REEEZ)

Revenue A 4 5,459 13,737 3,843
Other income H b WA 4 34 95 167

Cost of film production BERIERAK - - (667)
Staff costs 8IRA 7 (8,794) (18,549) (10,156)
Depreciation of property, plant and %% - = M &

equipment e 7 (800) (1,503) (1,169)

Amortisation of land lease FEAEMAE

prepayments 8y 7 (2,892) (3,453) (1,122)
Other operating expenses HEmgEER (19,377) (34,608) (16,677)
Finance costs 7l & AR 6 (21,279) (37,512) (35,752)
Share of loss of a joint venture NE—HEEE

Eii8 (627) (627) -

Loss before income tax BT S BRI 18 7 (48,276) (82,420) (61,533)
Income tax expense Fr{S it 2 8 1
Loss for the period FHEEE (48,276) (31,016) (82,420) (61,532)

Other comprehensive income/ Hib2mb AN~

(expense) (F%)
Item that will not be reclassified FAEEJHBIEHEMN

to profit or loss EH
Gain on revaluation of properties held = {5 1E & A9 %

for own use B R 2 11 108,222 108,222 —
Income tax relating to gain on EHEMFEER

revaluation of properties held for L E: R &

own use KSR (27,056) (27,056) —

Item that may be reclassified HETG®REIA
subsequently to profit or loss EHEMIER

Exchange differences on translation of 1 & /& % 7
financial statements of foreign B 75 3R R
operations ELEME N EZ5 (303) (9,808)

Other comprehensive income/ FHEEMET
(expense) for the period KA (%) 80,863 (9,808)

Total

(=

>mprehensive income/ AHEZEY) /4
1se f the period s ) el LR 32,587
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RECHEW 2 S A a0 S HAt A Tl a3

Note
k=4
Loss for the period FE1E A HA R
attributable to: 518 :
Owners of the Company RATHEBA
Non-controlling interests FEE R
Total comprehensive income/ FELEAHM2E
(expense) for the period AN (FX)
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company PAN/NETE ¥ =N
Non-controlling interests IS
Basic loss per share AEBAAT
attributable BAEANELESEK
to owners of the Company EXEE
during the period 9
Diluted loss per share AHREAAT
attributable BAEANELESER
to owners of the Company HMEBE
during the period 9

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILEZMEA

2015
—E-I1f
HK$’000
TER
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

(48,276)

(48,276)

HK(1.67)
cents &l

HK(1.67)
cents &l

2014

—E-lEF

HK$'000
THT

(Unaudited)
(REFER)

(34,666)

(Restated)
(g &E51)
HK(6.73)

cents &Ll

(Restated)
(rr&51)
HK(6.73)

cents B 1l

Six months ended

30 June

BEAA=+HILFEAR

2015 2014

—E—AF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REFER)
(82,420) (61,532)
(82,420) (61,532)
(71,340)

(71,340)

(Restated)

€3=-27))

HK(2.85) HK(13.36)
cents #fll cents &1Ll
(Restated)

(& E5)

L (P R:1)] HK(13.36)
cents 1l cents B 1l
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
AR 575 BN DL

30 June 31 December

2015 2014
—E—-1F —E—OE
VR d=l +—F=1+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TET FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (=)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - HERRB 11 1,759,495 1,695,981
Land lease prepayments R E 13 479,060 80,262
Investment in joint venture BETHERE 7,994 8,621
Investment in equity EmgE 5,000 -
Other receivables o U R IE 98,490 08,386
2,350,039 1,783,250
Current assets REEE
Film products BYEmM 12,543
Trade receivables FEWE 5 A 14 765
Inventories FE 4,108
Prepayments, deposits and other B RIE - e REM
receivables JiE U 5k 1B 27,575
Cash and Bank balances Be RBITHER 7,406
52,392
Current liabilities mENE
Trade payables FERT & 5508 15 133 158
Other payables and accruals E b FER AR ERTE A 98,124 67,702
Bank overdrafts RITH X 8,453 8,524
Loans from a related company —H@EBARMNER 16 12,400 12,400
Loans from shareholders MR E R 17 16,750 44,240
Borrowings BE 339,000 116,600
Finance lease obligation B 75 A0 & AR e 3,225 3,224
Bonds (62 18 2,033 79,946
Convertible bonds Al ¥ % 1 5 19 - 66,382
Provision for income tax Frisfi e 2,951 2,951
483,069 402,127
Net current liabilities HEEEFHE (421,899) (349,735)

Tota‘sets less current liabilities & & T WYCRPN 1433505 | .

: ] “"w W "m

s T T —

. . Ll il \ -
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RECHNG 2 S (5 IR DL

30 June 31 December

2015 2014
—E—-AF —E—NF
ANAZ=1H =]
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
P 5 FHET FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(R EBER) (E&EZ)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loans from shareholders [REMER 17 30,700 —
Borrowings BE 35,000 45,000
Bonds &% 18 28,067 —
Convertible bonds AT A% (B 5 19 360,639 140,260
Promissory note A HEE 21 75,016 —
Finance lease obligation B IS M E R IE 16,974 16,025
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFTBEE 186,812 159,756
733,208 361,041
Net assets EEFE 1,194,932 1,072,474
Capital and reserves BEXRGEE
Equity attributable to the owners  EARXATHEAA
of the Company FEIGHEZS
Share capital (&N 333,172 288,839
Reserves & 861,515 783,635
1,194,687 1,072,474
Non-controlling interests e R E R 245 —

Total equity R 1,194,932 1,072,474
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR REHAZ Z S 7 E 2 58 B 2%

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATRAAESE
Properties Share Convertible Attributable to
Share  Share Special Contributed revaluation Translation option bond equity Warrant A d olling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
WRER BRE TRRES SRESR E3:1:3 34
B¥ RGEE HHHEE RAES BE  RERG HE  EAEE BB RHER it i BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEx TEn TR TR TEn TERL TEL TR TEn TERL TEL TR
At 1 January 2014 R-¥-mE-A-8
(Audited) (E8H) 41,262 419,132 1,000 78,791 254,556 8219 26,229 114466 6,399 (240,636) 709,418 - 709418
Loss for the period AHEER - - - - - - - - - (61532 (61,532) - (6153
Exchange differences on translation #5550 £ 18t &5
of financial statements of foreign ~ E4ME R 258
operations - - - - - (0,808) - - - - (9808 - (9809
Total comprehensive expense  AHH2ER %
for the period ot} - - - - - (9,808) - - - (61,532 (71,340) - (11,340
At 30 June 2014 R-B-BEXA=HE
(Unaudited) (REEH) 4,262 419,132 1,000 78,791 254,556 (1,589) 26,229 114,466 6,399 (302,168) 638,078 - 638,078

At 1 January 2015 R-%-T%-f-8

(Audited) €519 283,839 620,011 1,000 338,871 (2,222) 26,229 51,040 (336,484) 1,072,474 1,072,474
Issue of convertible bonds BMBEREF 46,607 - 46,697 46,697
Share issued upon conversion of 3 AR BT EITH

convertible bonds ffa 43,759 (12,421) - - 7567
Lapse of warrants RBEB KA = - (6,399 6,399 -
Lapse of the equity component of TR E%# E &

convertible bonds BHKRM (5,235) 5,235
Capital injected by non-controlling 3 ¥ f € 3%

interests iy
Transactions with owners HRFAEANRS 333,172 663,770 1,000 338,871 (2,222) 80,081 (324,850) 1,194,842 245 1,195,087
Loss for the period FHEER (82,420)  (82,420) (82,420)
Gain on revaluation of properties  Eft & ERNEL

held for own use, net of tax Wa - MREE - 81,166 81,166

Exchange differences on translation # 5 50 ¥4 8 5 B & e
of financial statements of foreign ~ E4£ME R £5
operations

Total comprehensive income/  AHE2ERN /(%)
(expense) for the period @ 81,166 (82,420) (155)

At 30 June 2015 R-§-ZFXA=1E
(Unaudited) (kEEH) 333472 663,770 1,000 420,037 (1123) 26,229 (407,270) 1,194,687 25 1,194,032
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UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR W5 5 Bl B R

Six months ended 30 June

BESAZ+HLERER

2015 2014
—B-EF —F-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REHEZX) (REEEZ)
Net cash used in operating activities ~— && ¥ KT AR & F 58 (13,281) (26,886)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFAR S FR (52,357) (200,480)
Net cash generated by financing BEEBAE
activities e FEE 221,268
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RehfeFEER
cash equivalents #n, O ) F58 (6,098)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HUzHE Rk
beginning of the period RE&EEIAE (1,118) 8,007
Effects of exchange rate changes of the [ & & &) ¥ T35 HNEE IR &
balance of cash held HERRMEE
in foreign currencies (2,429) (37)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HIR ZIR & &
of the period ReEEIAE 1,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2001 as an exempted company under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010,
the Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and duly
continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units 3011B—
3012, 30/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
is principally engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services to
artistes, and operations of film studio and hotels. The
Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the Group
hereafter.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements has been prepared in accordance with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, including compliance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 Interim financial
reporting and interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 18 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as at 30 June 2015, as the directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
for the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration
the ability to generate funds internally.

The condensed consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR s R M E

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties which are
measured at fair values. Except as described below, the
accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the condensed consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2015 are the same as those
followed in the preparation of the annual financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and a new
interpretation issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employees Contributions

Amendments to HKFRS  Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS  Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRS and the
new interpretation in the current interim period had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.

3.

ERGEBOR

BRiEAAREFHEZREMEN  REERGHLE
BHBRERIIRIEELKAERSR BT XA
ES o BEZZ-RAFRA=THIERNEAZEH
SEMBMERMEBZEABR LA EDEZER
HEE-_T-—NF+ A=+ —BIFEZELEE
FEMBRERMEBEERR -

RATRHHE  AKBAERNEA TIBEL S
MAgRMzEEYBRESLEN(EEHBRS
HUDZETAR—AHBE:

EREEAE9% RERAE  EEHRK
€-HEN)
BEMBHEEN FEPHEREEN_T—F

(1ERTA) FE-T——FEBHZ
FE
BEPBREEDN BEUBREEN T ——
€-HEN) FET-=FEH2
FE SR

RATHBHEREETBERELENZEBITAR
ZEMEBREARERNAMEIBEHEZ M
XERMAR RZEREREEAEEYBR
R ZEBEERYBERERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S P IR 5T
4. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 4. WA K H fib e A
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, derived from HRERREAEETZEBENRANNALEER
the Group’s principal activities recognized during the VE )T
period as follows:
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June

BEAA=+HILZMEA BEAA=+THILAEAR

2015 2014 2015 2014
TE-AF pEmbouEel T A ik
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) IM(SLETT[I{Ye)} (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (R EZ) ENET S (REgER)

Revenue [N
Artiste management fee EUNCEE
income N
Hotel room income B JE 5 R A
Food and beverage income -3 XUON
Entrance fee income SE-ON
Films production and B RIERRET
licensing income WA 81
Rental income LU A 1,513
Sales of goods BEmEE 541
Ancillary services Mt % AR 75 399
13,737
Other income Hib g A

Others EAfh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR s R M E

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 4r#BE K

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a REBMBZEBENEEELER - BRERIER
manner consistent with the way in which information is RBETHENRAASEESETHRERABET
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive ANERE B RS 8 — iﬁ(ﬁ’t REBBREHKATE
management for the purposes of resources allocation and ENEc AEBIWEBFLEDEEO - LAEKT
performance assessment, the Group is currently organised DI 2H|HE -

into the following operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and —  Production and distribution BERERETUR — ZERBITEFZUR
distribution and of films and provision of BAER MEAREER
artiste management management services to AR 7

artistes

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio R EE — REREW

Hotel operation — Operation of hotel @Eﬁ‘“%‘? — EEBE

Segment information about the Group’s reportable BRAEERERD B BERENNAT -

segments is presented below.

Segment revenues and results FHBAREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue/ LAT?%TE AERDPPE D AERBRA EERE

turnover and results by reportable segments: EEDW:

Films
production
and distribution Inter-
and artiste Film studio Hotel segment
management operation operation elimination Total
B RERET
UREAEE REAREE EEEE SEHKH HEHE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FTERT FTHERT FTERT FTHERT FTHERT

Six months ended BE-F-1%ERA

30 June 2015 =+H81LEAR

(Unaudited) (REER)
Revenue from external customers RE4SNEEFH KA ! 7,991
Inter-segment revenue o ER R A 337
Reportable segment revenue A2Hmo A 697 5,049 8,328 13,737
Reportable segment loss AE®|HDEE (4,212) (21,932) (10,078) (36,222)
Other income Hfth g A 95
Unallocated corporation expenses & % it 22 @] 5 2 (5,328)
Amortisation B (3,453)
Finance costs ERA (37,512)

Loss before income tax BREITEHAIER (82,420)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BB R IR

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Jr#EBH(AD)
(CONTINUED)
Films
production
and distribution Inter-
and artiste  Film studio Hotel segment
management operation operation elimination Total

BERHERET
URBEAEE FHRALE BELE HBHEH BeH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET FHT
Six months ended BE-FT-WNERA
30 June 2014 =+HLERER
(Unaudited) (REER)

Revenue from external customers R EINREFH WA 1,599 1,913 827 — 4,339
Inter-segment revenue o EE A - - 55 (55) -
Reportable segment revenue AEH/RABRA 1,599 1,913 882 (55) 4,339
Reportable segment loss AIZHDHEE (1,229) (8,823) (6,829) - (16,881)
Other income HlA 167
Unallocated corporation expenses 7 % it 22 8] f &2 (9,067)
Finance costs BE R A (35,752)
Loss before income tax BRITEHAIERE (61,533)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated FEE2HFOWARHANKBINAZTERN KR A ED
from external customers and inter-segment sales during RS E o
the period.
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit/(loss) incurred DEHEF (BB EEDHELN N (BE) -
by each segment without allocation of central EHWESRARTHREAAN(BEESHS - 18
administration costs including directors’ salaries, gain on MEBATIAWEZ « Hih & W A RELE K A) o 1t
deregistration of subsidiaries, other operating income and AP ERRTIHOHREMATELESARE
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief ERENTEF L ©

operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 30 June 2015
(Unaudited)
Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Unallocated corporation assets

Consolidated assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Loans from a related company
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

Bonds

Convertible bonds

Promissory note

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for income tax
Unallocated corporation liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

At 31 December 2014
(Audited)
Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalent
Unallocated corporation assets

Consolidated assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Loans from a related company
Loans from a shareholder
Borrowings

Bonds

Convertible bonds

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for income tax
Unallocated corporation liabilities

R=ZF—-AFA=+H
(REER)
NERDBEE

ME - BERRE
RekReSEHER
ROBLRAREE

GEHEE
TEHRSHERE

—HEBATNER
R B R

B &

&%

A 3 i 18 75
ESES
EEHRER

PR 1SHB4
ROBRAREE

RZE—HFE+=A
=t-B@EER)
2N BEE

— BB QR M E K
—HBRREER

& &

&%

Al R E S
EEFR AR R
Gk 4
RDBRAAE

meakE

production and
distribution and
artiste
management
ERRIERET
UREAER
HK$'000

FET

(2,763)

13,300

LR AR I R
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Jr#EBH(AD)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
Films

Film studio
operation

BREE
HK$'000
F

1,337,285

(102,740)

858,067

Hotel
operation

s
HK$'000
TR

1,032,003

(10,753)

939,626

(2,223)

(56,634)

(34,671)

Total

BaEW
HK$'000
TEL

2,390,996

17,626
1,717
870

2,411,209

(116,256)

(12,400)
(47,450)
(382,453)
(30,100)
(360,639)
(75,016)
(186,812)
(2,951)
(2,200)

(1,216,277)

1,810,993

18,129
3,438
3,082

1,835,642

(93,528)

(12,400)
(44,240)
(161,600)
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SR MBS IRR  EE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. gy #REORH(AD
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PBEERERE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REZSBERBAIRDHAHEAEEIR
allocating resources between segments:
- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — BRRABIEEN FEREEIRESAZ2
than corporate assets; and wAE R
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — BRARIEEN  MEEEENEESTER
other than corporate liabilities. 28 -
Other segment information H 5 &6 5 8
Films
production
and distribution
and artiste Film studio Hotel
management operation operation Total
ERBRERET
UREBEAEE RRABEE BEEER W
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHEIT FHET
At 30 June 2015 R-T—A&EA=Z+H
(Unaudited) (REEZ)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - B N & &
and equipment e
Amortisation of land lease FERLHmEE
prepayments i)

Additions to non-current assets  3E i 8 & & 1 N

At 30 June 2014 RZE—MFEARA=+H

(Unaudited) (CREEZ)
Depreciation of property, plant — #1% - BB & & &

and equipment e 29 217 465 71
Amortisation of land lease EALHAEE

prepayments BH — — 1,122 1,122
Additions to non-current assets  JET B) & A& N — 38,081 129,435 167,516
Geographical information HEEE
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are REEBMBRARFERDEEHEFERGHE (R
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong Kong FBEB)BIAEBEETEERFMERME) -
(being the place of domicile of the major companies
comprising the Group).
The geographical location of customers is based on the EEMBERDERERFERREITSOMNM
location at which the contracts are negotiated and entered BEME - KREIBELPHAMAETEZREFH -

with the customers. The total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MBS AR I L

6. FINANCE COSTS

Finance lease charges A EER

Interest on bonds BEHFE

Interest on convertible bonds Al ¥ A% (& H 7 B

Interest on other borrowings ARAFREH
wholly repayable within five EENHEMEES
years &

Less: Amount capitalised on B EEIRENMER
construction in progress ok |

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was Nil (2014: 7.24%) per annum for the period.

Three months ended

6. &R A

Six months ended

30 June 30 June
BESA=1+HL=EA

BEAA=+HILAEA

2015 2014 2015 2014

—2-4f —T—mF —E—-4F —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) IE(SLETTIET)] (Unaudited)
(REEZ) EX S (CREFR) (RE&EZ)

644 1,138
2,270 5,637
10,079 17,105

8,286 13,632

21,279 37,512

HAMNEFOEREAML R AT (2T —HF:

FF7.24%) °
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SR MBS IRR  EE
7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. B P45 BT S 1R
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June

BEAA=+HILZ=MEA BEAA=+THILREA

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-LF pEmbuEel T A Eelapiks
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) I(SLHETTIET)] (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RgERZ) ENEFE: ) (R EZ)

Loss before income tax is MRETIS BRI B E kR

arrived at after charging T3 &8

Auditor’s remuneration % ELAD B &

Amortisation of land lease Bt LS
prepayments i

Depreciation of property, WM BREREE
plant and equipment £

Costs of inventories HRRAINEFE
recognised as expense X AR

Minimum lease payments BEEEHERE
under operating leases in MENRERE
respect of rented EA
premises

Gain on disposal of non- HEERBEEN
current assets W g

Employee benefit expenses {EEEFIFX

(including directors’ (BRESFH)
remuneration)

Salaries and allowances e ROER
Contributions to retirement RURAE ) ET & 5K

benefits schemes
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MBS AR I L
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil) as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong during
these periods.

The PRC foreign enterprise income tax has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for
taxation purposes for both periods. The PRC income tax
charged during the period under review (2014: Nil)
represented the tax levied on a Hong Kong subsidiary of
the Group at 10% in respect of income derived from the
source within the PRC.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$82,420,000 (2014: approximately
HK$61,532,000) and the weighted average of
approximately 2,890,839,000 (2014: (restated)
approximately 460,593,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the period.

Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the period ended 30 June
2015 was the same as basic loss per share as the impact
of the exercise of the share options, warrants and
convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2015 (2014:
Nil).

10.

Pt 15 Bt BA 32

HAAEBERBE_Z-RFNA=THILLXEA
WEEEBEEEMERTOET - ML BHUE
PRZEBNGHEHEE(CT—OF &) -

BMRNAEEARRMESNESSREHEERE
WA EAPBEINE XSG RIELEE - RER
BEAMBRZPEMSH(CT—OF: E)HARE
B -EEENBLRMERE T EIRAZAN
10% B F R ZBIA -

Bt D 0 A O BB Y AR B DA
EABEE -

AR 2y W] B AN BB AN B B s R

EREABEDIREAQRABEABEBEED
82,420,000/ Jt (=T — P 4F : 961,532,000/ JT)
K BN E 317 5 i AR 69 DN 5 2149 2,890,839,000
B(=ZF — mF: (4 £ %) £460,593,0008%) 5+
§ °

MNITEBRE RBREZRITARESAER
BEYE WEE_ZT-AFANA=THLEHEAR
RAFEEANBEEENERBEHEEGRER
EEER -

ik B

EREETRERNEBZE_T-—0LF R A=TRHILRX
BAKNFHRE(ZE—HE &)
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SR MBS IRR  EE
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. W3 ~ B Kkl
EQUIPMENT
The movements of property, plant and equipment of the AEENE BELRRBIEHUT:
Group were:
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
i L i —T—mNEF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT F#& T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EEZ)
At 1 January w—H—H 1,595,981 663,539
Additions: NE
Construction in progress EETRE - 97,557
Property, plant and equipment M- WERRK 52,507 3,233
Surplus on valuation EHAR 108,222 112,420
Disposal HE (85) —
Depreciation e (1,503) (2,517)
Exchange realignment fE i & 4,373 (7,768)
Transfer from investment properties (note 12) @ BREWE (H1:£12) - 729,517
Closing net book value HAREEFE 1,759,495 1,695,981
The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings XA Et W EREFEEENSTOT

shown above are situated on:

30 June 31 December
2015 2014

—¥-4afF —E-mF
~BA=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REE) (EZ)

Land in Hong Kong under medium-term UREEMNTRHABE T
leases 17,102
Land in the PRC under medium-term leases  fi 7AF1 B #) R HAFR & + # 11,072
28,174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR AR M E

ARA

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. W% - BB K 3% (&)
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Hotel properties and Film Studio were revaluated on 30 BEDMEREZERNR T —RAFNA=FTHAK
June 2015 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“‘RHL’). The FMITHEERERAB (RFIT) ETER - EiE
revaluation surplus (approximately HK$108,222,000) net of B £ (#9108,222,00058 7T) 1K & B 0 IR AT Fr 18 8%
applicable deferred income taxes (approximately (#927,056,0007% 7T) B &1 A 858 ) /281,166,0007%
HK$27,056,000) was credited to properties revaluation THMEEGHEE MBSV EREERIL EE
reserve in the amount of approximately HK$81,166,000. If TERG  WERER=ZT—AFA=THEES®
the Hotel properties and Film Studio had not been AR5 B #)395,612,0007% 7T & £7258,569,000/% 7T
revalued, it would have been included in the consolidated FIAGRA B HRE -
financial statements at historical cost of approximately
HK$395,612,000 and approximately HK$258,569,000
respectively as at 30 June 2015.
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s construction in REAANEECERTIROAAER  EREIRED
progress, the highest and best use of the construction on BEak&xERARAERERAE EREIRNFY
progress is their current use. The reconciliation of the REBRRARBEEGOERINAN LR -
opening and closing fair value balances is stated in the
above table.
There has been no change to the valuation techniques B HERNLEEZS - TRIEHBBENEE
during the period. The following table gives information EREERIENAABLERMAMKERMNR
about how the fair values of these construction in FEHAHBINER  UREEARENEERR
progress are determined (in particular, the valuation AREAEIZHAEBNITEEEEmMD L
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value AREEBR(FE—REE=MR) -
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the key inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
Significant
Fair value unobservable
Element hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs inputs Range/Amount Sensitivity
EXFIHRE #HE
TE AREER FHERFEREIEBAER [PN 1§ 28E HEE
Hotel properties Level 3 Direct comparison method by assuming sales  Discounts on -10% to 10% The higher the
BEYE E=H transactions as available in the relevant quality of -10%%10%  premiums or
market (i.e. sales transaction price per hotel properties discounts, the higher
room) and taking into account the costs that ¥f#) ¥ & &®) or lower the fair
will be expended to complete the g values
constructions, with significant adjustments for HERITRAS AR
differences in the location and condition of B s sk AR
the Group’s construction in progress
HELEZE BREBTISLAHERS (AE
FBEEEHOHELHBEB)REBRTRERT
ERERENKA  URASEERIREN
UERGHEHERTE
Film Studio — Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach Replacement RMB290,000,000 The higher the costs of
Buildings E=H (based on current cost of replacement of the  costs of A R #290,000,0007t  constructions, the
AR - gF improvements, less allowance for physical constructions higher the fair
deterioration and all relevant forms of on the land values
obsolescence and optimisation) 1 ih F AR A BEKADR® DA
MESBERAR(ERYERBEEMEERAE BEERA BERS
BREFBER—DHEBAFEANKREREL
I HR)
Film Studio — Land Level 3 Market approach (based on the comparable Discounts on -5% to 5% The higher the
HRW — Lt F=H accommodation value sq.ft. observed from quality of -5%%E5%  discounts, the lower
the market) properties the fair values
TIHE(ERETSEEMENILBREENEG HYEERED rEAE  ARERE
T REE) TR s "

%4
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S B
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. 3% - Bm Kk ()
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings which ARER-F-RAFNA=THREREFENR
had an aggregate net book amount at 30 June 2015 of 1?,839,()990;%71:(:%—@& : 17,102,9297% L) K
approximately HK$16,839,000 (2014: HK$17,102,000) were ATHALIREFETER - UREEZHR
pledged to obtain banking faciliies for overdrafts. At the TRARE - RMEHK ARERERARE
end of the reporting period, the net carrying amount of A ‘%ﬁt}’xE"JEEE{#‘@%@EW,BM,OOO?%7E(:
film studio held under finance leases of the Group was T4 : 11,072,000/ 7T) °
approximately HK$10,847,000 (2014: HK$11,072,000).
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. #&EHE
The movements of investment properties of the Group REEBREMEZLHOT :
were:

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E—-REF —E—-mEF

~A=+H +=-—A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER F& T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

Fair value ARE

At 1 January Hn—A—H 676,576

Additions -yl 31,437

Change in fair value NREE 23,698

Exchange realignment FE i 5 & (2,194)

Transfer to properties, plant and equipment EE =¥ % MELZE (729,517)

Closing net book value EARBREFE —
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group BE_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HBIFE AEER
transferred investment properties located in PRC with the EEBMETRRARE  BR_T-—NF+=ZA=+
fair value of RMB585,000,000 (equivalent to approximately = HRAARMEAARKS85000,0007T (8 & R 4
HK$729,517,000) at 23 December 2014 to property, plant 729,517,000 W) L R F B MR EMEEEEY

and equipment upon Opening for tourists to Film Studio. ¥ BEREE-
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Sre B R M
13. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13. WA LB
The Group’s land lease prepayments comprise: AEENEN LA ERRE:
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—¥-%E —T—MNF
7A=+H +-HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EZ)
At 1 January wn—H—H 80,262 82,507
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 23) W B — W B AR (A i723) 402,251 -
Amortisation during the period B A 8 (3,453) (2,245)
Closing net book value HAREEFE 479,060 80,262
The land lease prepayments represented the premium BT EEREETH BB A ERAKSEHE
recognised when acquiring the land interests in the PRC THES TS TERORE -
by operating lease arrangement with the local authority.
ES
14. TRADE RECEIVABLES 14. MW 5wk 0
The Group generally allows a credit period from 30 to 90 Ao Fﬁjg“ﬁigﬁ%{% E’qié%ﬁlﬂ—)%?ig_ésao
days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade A« BRES KRR RRERE) O RE DT
receivables, net allowance for bad and doubtful debts are L

stated as follows:

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E—-hfF —E—-MmEF

~A=+H +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TF#ET FET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (BEZ)

0 to 30 days 0&30H 168 —
31 to 60 days 31&260H 558
61 to 90 days 61£90H -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 7
Over 180 days B #180H 200
765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$477,000 (31 December
2014: approximately HK$207,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. Trade receivables that are past due
but not impaired related to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors believe that no impairment loss
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The directors considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods at their inception.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group has granted by its suppliers’ credit periods
from 30 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of trade
payables is stated as follows:

14.

15.

SR MBS IR L

JE W B2 5% sk 2 (%)

R AT EIEREEL A477,0008 T (=2 —MF
+=AZ=+—8: 4207,0007% JT) & FE 43 B 1 3R
LHB@A - NEE T EAZ S ERIEELR
BEEEEEG DRRETRBRENERES KA
HRALEETRTERCDHERONER - RE
BEER  EFHE ARZSEFNEEER
WHEEXES ZEEKDERET2EURE -
MBERZESEHRELREBERE AEET
EBRREEBBEERS -

BEERA ARBREZREARELREHA
A MEAAEREEETESAEER -

JE A 5 55 5k

AEBEEHEHEREX F0E60EMEEH - BN
BSRBAMRE ST

31 December
2014

—T-mF
+ZA=+—8
HK$'000
FET
(Audited)

(f8 &%)

HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

0 to 30 days 0%30H
31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61£90H
91 to 180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days #B#180H

158

23
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AR s R M E

16. LOANS FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

Loans from a related company represented short-term
interest bearing loans granted to National Arts
Entertainment Limited (“NA Entertainment”) by First Credit
Limited, of which Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), a non-
executive director of the Company, has significant
influence. The loan is interest-bearing at 11% per annum,
repayable within one year and are secured by a corporate
guarantee granted by the Company.

17. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the interest
rate in between 10%-13% and repayable within one to
three years.

18. BONDS

During the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Company
issued 9 batches of bonds (the “2015 Bonds”) amounting
to HK$32,000,000 in aggregate to various third parties.
The details of the bonds issued during the period are set

16. — [ BRIk 2> W) 0 8 3K
—EEBARNERABBRARRENITE S LR
MEEMEEEDHEBEAXVEINE—EA
BHERARMEZBREGRNE ([HEIRE))F
PEORBAMREER - ZERRFEFEN%TE - A
R—FREETHARBMEDLERER -

17. B SR 8 3%
RROBERAERT - FENF10%E13% * WA
R—E=ZFRNEE -

18. &%

BE_ZT—RAF~NA=Z+BHLEXNEAR  ARFR%
BEZHFETAMESF(ZE—AFEH]) &8
4 #£ 432,000,000/ 7C - HHANEHITESENFIE
T

out as follows:

Date of issue

Principal amount Interest rate Maturity period

BE{TEHH A&E£HE ME BHEH
HKS$
BT
Bond 2 19 January 2015 2,000,000 4% per annum 1 year
F_#MES —E-hFE—-A+hA F R 4% 16
Bond 3 19 January 2015 2,000,000 4% per annum 2 years
BE=#ESF —E-RF—-ATNIA F ) E4% 2%
Bond 4 20 January 2015 9,600,000 8% per annum 7 years
FEMLES —E-RF—A=+H | %E8% 75
Bond 5 4 February 2015 2,000,000 8% per annum 7 years
FHHES —E-HF-AMWAH & 8% 75
Bond 6 23 February 2015 500,000 8% per annum 7 years
ERBRES —T—hF¥=-A=+=H N 8% 7
Bond 7 4 March 2015 2,000,000 8% per annum 7 years
ELHES —E-HF=AMWA F ) E8% 7
Bond 8 9 March 2015 3,000,000 8% per annum 7 years
ENRES —T—hF=ANA FF) 8% 75
Bond 9 19 March 2015 10,000,000 8% per annum 7 years
FNfES —E-RF=A+AhA & 8% 75
Bond 10 1 June 2015 1,000,000 8% per annum 7 years
ETHES —E—aFRA—H FH) E8% 75

32,000,000
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18. BONDS (CONTINUED)

Interest is repayable annually. The net proceeds, after
deducting the transaction costs, amounted to
HK$29,200,000. The effective interest rate ranges from 4%
to 10.06% per annum after the adjustment for the
transaction costs. The 2015 Bonds were denominated in
HKS.

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued the bonds (“Bond
1”) with an aggregate principal amount of HK$78,775,000
at par value in accordance with the conditional placing
and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013 entered
into between the Company and an independent placing
agent. The Bond 1 have a maturity of 2 years from the
date of issue and bear coupon interest at 7.5% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. The
Bonds were denominated in HKS.

In addition, same amount of unlisted warrants (the
“Warrants”) were issued (for no additional payment) to the
bondholders who are entitled to subscribe in aggregate up
to HK$78,775,000 for the warrant shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.115 per warrant share within 2
years from the date of issue of the Warrants. As a result
of the share consolidation announced by the Company on
7 July 2014 and the rights issue announced by the
Company on 4 August 2014 and in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Warrants, adjustment to the
subscription price of the Warrants from HK$0.115 per
warrant share to HK$1.091 per warrant share has become
effective.

The Warrants are detachable from the Bond 1 and the
Warrants and the Bond 1 can be transferred separately in
whole or in part in minimum amount of HK$575,000 or
integral multiples thereof. Bond 1 was fully repaid during
the period.

18.

o B R B R E

& 7% (#1)

FMEEGFEE LB IEAE - FTEHIE
JFE8 /529,200,000 7T © (KAERSGRAEL - BR
EFNEN FA4%E10.06% c —E—REBHUBT
FTE °

WZE-—=FRA-+=0 ARARERLAH
—RBUREERER - %——iﬂﬂﬂ'/\ﬁﬂj
MBKRHESERBHEMHE  REERTAZA
#578,775,0008 T E S ([ —HEAE ] « 2 ?tt
BFERTHHRAMFERNS  8FSXR75%
MNESHRFLASFRARINIANE - &
FIABTTEHE -

o BEREFEFEEARTHRBENIIELTR
MR ([RARAEED(BAEBEIMIR) - BT HEEE
FRBETRREZAHEAMEAN  BREEST
% SRR AE FE B 19 01158 TR iE & £ & £78,775,000
BITHRBREERSD - ARARTR T —WOF
+tAEEABHRMDEFRARRNRZE —HFEN

PO H A 4 AR A T AR 1 3R A% A 5B A 16 R B 1
14: ! wuHX*g wu%ﬁﬁﬂl%wuk%ﬁhbjo‘]‘]S

BLTHAEBLRERABREZIRMONBITELE
B o

RREBAIRE—HESFFD i 38 A% 4 78
F—HEFAZHNLH LAWK%%%% 00078 7T
SHEEFHTUIAE R - F—HEHERE
NBEHERE -

25
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LR AR I R
18. BONDS (CONTINUED) 18. f& % (%)
The movements of the liability components of the bonds ERVBMRARERNEFAETS>OEFHOT
recognized in the statement of financial position are as
follows:
30 Jun 2015 31 Dec 2014
—E-AF —T—NF
~A=+H +=—A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET F& T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZ)
Opening balance HR A 4 79,946 74,182
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITESEHIE 32,000 -
Transaction costs allocated to the liability PHREEBEBHIHZHEA
component (PR:10]0)] —
Interest expenses (note 6) B X (#it6) 5,637 11,673
Interest paid during the period BHABMFE (5,908) (5,909)
Repayment during the period BN E K (78,775) —
Closing balance i N3 30,100 79,946
Carrying amount repayable ARUTHHEERZERAE
Within one year —FA 79,946
More than one year, but not exceeding —F LA BB E
two years _
More than five years AFMNUE —
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB3

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$92,000,000
(“CB3”) at par value in accordance with the conditional
placing and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013
entered into between the Company and an independent
placing agent. The CB3 has a maturity of 2 years from the
date of issue and bears coupon interest at 7.5% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on any
sum due and payable under the CB3 from the due date to
the date of actual payment in full. The CB3 was
denominated in HKS$. The conversion price of the CB3 is
HK$1.091 per conversion share after the consideration of
the anti-dilution usual adjustments in August 2014.

CB3 contain two components: liability and equity
elements. The equity element is included in equity headed
“convertible bonds equity reserves”. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component of the CB3 was
calculated using future repayments discounted at an
estimated discount rate of 12.68%. CB3 was fully repaid
during the period.

CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
remaining equity interests in Head Return Limited (“HRL”)
and Expand Pacific Limited (“EPL"), the Company issued
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$420,000,000 (“CB4”) on 2 October 2013. The CB4 has
a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bears
coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. A default rate of 8% per
annum will be charged on any sum due and payable
under the CB4 from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The CB4 was denominated in HK$. The
conversion price of the CB4 is HK$1.063 per conversion
share after the consideration of the anti-dilution usual
adjustments in August 2014.

CB4 contain two components: liability and equity
elements. The equity element is included in equity headed
“convertible bonds equity reserves”. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component of the CB4 was
calculated using future repayments discounted at an
estimated discount rate of 15.63%. Subsequently, interest
expense on the CB4 is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying effective interest rate of
16.47%. As at 30 June 2015, the outstanding principal
amount of the CB4 is HK$159,600,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

the Company respectively.

AR AR M E

ARA

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(CONTINUED)
cB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited as detailed in note 23, the Company
issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 (“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The
CB5 has a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily
and payable annually in arrears. The conversion price of
CB5, subject to the anti-dilution usual adjustments, is
HK$0.188 per conversion share. The CB5 was
denominated in HK$.

CB5 contain two components: liability and equity
elements. The equity element is included in equity headed
“convertible bonds equity reserves”. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component of the CB5 was
calculated using future repayments discounted at an
estimated discount rate of 11.28%. Subsequently, interest
expense on the CB5 is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying effective interest rate of
11.48%. On initial recognition, the amount of equity
component of CB5 was approximately HK$46,697,000.

In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate principal amounts of
HK$79,800,000 were converted into 443,333,333 ordinary
shares of the Company in total at a conversion price of
HK$0.188 each. As at 30 June 2015, the outstanding
principal amount of the CB5 is HK$220,200,000.

The movement of the liability components of the
convertible bonds recognised in the statement of financial
position are as follows:

19. Wl # i 8 77 (#8)
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FAEAR - FRMATBRBREFABITEHE -

ERYABREREFEEMERY : AEREST
R o BaiRiANRRESEEFHEEIRTH
@A - R HERE  ERHTRRESAE
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7 ) % 78 49 /546,697,000 IT ©

RIZZE—RFNA - A& 4% A79,800,0007% T H
FRAATBRBES R L BRESROISSHELEIR A
ANQA) 4 $£443,333,333W LB - R—T—AF
NAZTRH FRHLATBRBRESFNREELAS S

1 /3220,200,000/% 7T ©

ERFBMRRREROARREFEEIDHE

E/8/UN

CB

iR ES

HK$’000

FHT

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE—RAF—A—B2Z2&#% 206,642
Fair value of liability components on initial recognition NP EREEEBINAALE 283,308
Effective interest expenses ERFERAX 17,105
Interest paid during the period AR FLE (6,345)
Converted into ordinary shares R AT E R (75,671)
Repayment of principle HEAS (64,400)
Balance at 30 June 2015 RZTE—RFENA=FTHZ&H 360,639

Included in convertible bonds are amounts of
approximately HK$266,400,000 and HK$38,220,000 due to
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Ms. Law Po Yee, the director of

ARBREFBERNARRES ABRMEERE
E 72X L XHED B A A266,400,000% T K&

38,220,000/ 7T °
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20. COMMITMENTS 20. &5

(@) HEEHARE

AEEBRBEIARELEHERTATRE
REBENKEE  HMERMAT:

(a) Commitments under operating lease

The Group had the following future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—EB—-AF —E-NF
~A=+H +-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FHT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (e FE%)
Within one year —FR 8,154 2,767
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEERF(REERWE) 30,218 8,820
Over five years HBBAF 269,173 58,935
307,545 70,522
(b)  Capital commitments (b) BERIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: AEBFNT BEARALE:

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—EB-—RF —E-F
~A=+H +=-—A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Contracted but not provided for: EHEREE ST -E
Construction of properties (note (a)) YRR (W it(a) 3,068
3,068
Authorised but not contracted for: BHEBRETH
Construction of properties (note (a)) W) 2R (M it (a) 79,466
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20. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 20. #& ¥ (%)
(b)  Capital commitments (Continued) (b) BEXRREE
Notes: Bt
(@  Capital commitment for construction of (@) MERENERERERARES
properties related to capital commitment for R 1L T B AR OB S ) B AR R
construction of film studio and hotel in BoRBEASERFPEFB LM
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount BEMETN LB ERZ(REE
was approved by the directors of the FAHE L AR IR X RAERAR
Company according to the land lease SEBMAELE) BEHREESE
agreements signed between the Group and EHARFESE -

the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in
relation to the leasing of lands for
development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel

operations.
21. PROMISSORY NOTE 21. A& E g
On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory note RZZE—AFMA+HA  ARARBREARRAEZE
with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “PN”) at par MEARKDCEGRRBERARFNTES
value in accordance with the sale and purchase GEMEERVBSAT—NF+=A=+=H
agreement dated 22 December 2014 entered into between ZBEEHE  REMEE TR £ % /A80,000,000
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited, the wholly owned B2 ERER(EELER]) - AXEBERET
subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the AERF=F08 REERFNEI%EBEZ5T -
non-executive director of the Company. The PN have a WEARSFFRINMN - AELBETIABITE -

maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN were denominated in

HKS.

During the six months ended 30 June 2015, on initial BEZZT-—AFA=THLERER RULHER
recognition, the fair value of the PN was calculated by B AHREZ AR BT IR RE IR E12.37% 8,
discounting future repayments at an estimated discount RARRENRENE - Hig - AHERBREREET
rate of 12.37%. Subsequently, interest expense on the PN RABREBFNR12M%TEF B -

was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying an effective interest rate of 12.41%.

The movement for the period on the PN was as follows: EAEBERBARZEBMNT
PN
RN ER
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value on initial recognition (Note 23) RGN AR BB 723 73,496
Effective interest expense (Note 6) BB B (A i76) 1,520

Balance at 30 June 2015 RZZE—RAFENAZTRAZEH 75,016
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements, during the period of the
six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group paid interest
of approximately HK$682,000 (2014: approximately
HK$399,000) to a related company and approximately
HK$1,088,000 (2014: approximately HK$393,000) to a
shareholder.

23. ACQUISITION OF LUX UNICORN

LIMITED

On 15 April 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% of the issued share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited
(“Lux Unicorn”). Lux Unicorn is principally engaged in the
sourcing and execution of investment opportunities for real
estate development projects in the PRC.

The consideration consisted of (i) PN with principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 at par value; and (i) convertible
bond with principal amount of HK$300,000,000 at par
value (“CB 5”).

Consideration transferred

o B R B R E

22. BT R 5

BRI I RRAR & I TRk H S0 R & Hh -
HE-Z-AFNA-TBHLEANEABBAR A%
Er-—EEBEARE—ERESNZMAFELD
682,000/ 7T (== — O 4F : 49399,000/% 7t) & 49
1,088,000/ 7T (==& — MU 4 : 49393,000/%8 7T) ©

23. W N A PR 2 W

REZZ-—hEMA+HAR  ARETRKERBE
RAFN (BB D EITRAZ100% « BB 2 2
XBRMEREETEEMENEIRE ZRER
8 o

REBREFEHIZEEREITAS S5 580,000,000 T
PEAREZE RHNEBEETACSEA
300,000,000/ T 2 AT R & % ([E8 AL AT 2 AR &
%) °

CEERE

At 15 April
2015
R-ZF—RF
mA+&aH

HK$’000
TFERT

Fair value of PN
Fair value of CB 5

Total

EABEBZR

K& 73,496
FRARATBRBRESFZAAE

330,005

e Et 403,501
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23. ACQUISITION OF LUX UNICORN
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

23, Wi b e A R 2 W] (4

RuEEH BN EERREDNER

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition

At 15 April
2015
R=-F—A2%F
mA+AH

HK$’000
FHET

Current assets
Deposit

Non-current assets

Land lease prepayments

Net assets

MREBEE

we

EREEE
BT EE 402,251

BESFE 403,501

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Lux Unicorn Limited

KEEBAERATNREFRL

Six months
ended

30 June
2015

BE
—E-LF
~A=+H

IE7REA
HK$’000
FERT

Consideration paid in cash
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

Total

NR ez E

B TR 2 R e
ReHEREER

st
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group reported a
revenue of approximately HK$13.7 million, representing an
increase of 257.5% as compared to the revenue in the
previous period. The revenue was mainly attributable to
the revenue from hotel accommodation, studio entrance
fee and food and beverage segment.

Staff costs for the period under review increased to
approximately HK$18.5 million from approximately
HK$10.2 million in the previous period. An increase of
approximately HK$8.3 million in staff costs was mainly
due to the increased labour demand in the PRC for the
operation of the Group’s Studio and Hotel business.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
increased to approximately HK$34.6 million from
approximately HK$16.7 million in the previous period. An
increase of approximately HK$17.9 million was mainly due
to an increase in direct cost such as food supplies,
ingredients and other fast moving consumer goods which
are consumed by the Hotel. In addition, to cope with the
periodical events held in the Studio, the costs of project
management and stage design commensurately increased
during the period.

Finance costs for the period under review increased
approximately HK$1.8 million, the increase was mainly
attributable to the redemption of convertible bonds in the
2nd half of 2014, the increase in interest payments for
loans from independent third party lenders in an amount
of approximately HK$7.2 million and the absence of
amount being capitalized on construction in progress,
which were alternatively set off by the reduction in
interests on convertible bonds in an amount of
approximately HK$15.0 million.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$82.4 million as
compared to net loss of the comparable period of
approximately HK$61.5 million. The loss for the six
months ended was mainly due to the increase in staff
costs and other operating expenses.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Studio Project has a total developed
land area of 444,000 square metres and is a unique
studio which incorporates tourism and recreational
facilities such as film shooting areas, theme parks, hotels
and performing arts complexes.

o PR o g B g A

S 5 1]

REEBE - AEE S A 413,700,000 7T
& F—HEMU A EF2575% c WA FEREA
JEER  ZBRRAABERERFEMHWA -

ol B8 BRI 9 B T Ak A/ —H#3 R 410,200,000 7T
+ F+ = #18,500,0007%8 L o B T B & £ F %)
8,300,000/ 7T * T E RN ENE B F KW KB
EEBEMERHFHETEREARK -

o] g8 HE A A B b A< %2 B A R = — HA 1 4916,700,000
37T _EFEE 4934,600,000/8 70 - EM KL ER
#317,900,0008 L Y E ZEHMNBEEFTER 2R M
MEREMPREERE EER AT -
AN BEARERBBIIZECHEE BETE
MEARTZHRAREAANMERELLM -

o] &8 Hf A9 @ & AR S 38 50 491,800,000 7 © £ 2
HRE T NETHEFERUBRES  BE
FEBILE=ZFERABERZF B A FE N4
7,200,000 T RN FHEAMNERZ IR EAN &5
T B8 5 M 35 i 4 A 32 IR (& 5 7 Bk 2> £915,000,000
BICATIR Y o

HE-Z-—AFNA=ZTHIEANEAR  KNEEBES
518 )F 58 482,400,000 7T ML 8 B R A9 5 18 0F
FH 849 /461,500,000 7T - #EZ A IENE B S
EEITEAREIXN AR EMGEERBMATE -

EX TN
mHUEEREREE

AEBMNRBREHLUMAOTEME LBEZEZEHE
B DL AEmIEELA44000F K @ 2ESE
EXHBSH TBREE BE RESESH
K RBEERER —SFNBREZER -
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Xigiao National Arts Studio started its soft
commencement in December 2014. It is believed that the
Studio will become one of the hot tourist spots in
Guangdong province which could attract tourists and
provide them with immersive entertainment experience.

In connection with this, the Group entered an exclusive
selling agreement with a travel agency, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a Hong Kong listed company, to
promote the travel packages and Greater China packages
of the National Arts Studio, and to promote the wedding
photo shooting area through the introduction of National
Arts Studio wedding photography, travel and
accommodation package in order to attract different
groups of customers.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Studio Project and equips with the most
excellent and comprehensive ancillary facilities featuring
the most realistic and delicate details in the South China.

The film shooting base covers 374,000 square metres,
including a lake of 120,000 square metres.

The shooting scenic spots have been completed and are
partially opened to production crews for leasing, several
films and TV series were produced here by virtue of the
extensive choices of the shooting base. The film shooting
base provides diversified and extensive scenes for crews
of the Mainland China as well as overseas companies
and is expected to attract a certain amount of film
production companies all over the world due to its
supreme geographical location and multifunctional
services provided. Furthermore, the Group is considering
inviting famous retail organizations to set up their retail
shops in the shooting base to provide necessary
commodities to guests.

In particular, the Group entered into a business
partnership agreement with a leading entertainment
company in Korea, which is also listed on the Catalist of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, with a
common objective of promoting the film and other
entertainment businesses. The most famous productions
of the subsidiary of that Korean company include
“Secretly, Greatly” and “My Love from the Star” acted by
Kim Soo-hyun. The Korean entertainment company
contains a wide variety of businesses; other than film
production, it also owns one of the leading talent
management agencies in Korea. It is believed that the
collaboration can further promote the fame of National
Arts Studio given that production crews from Korea might
also film their movies in the Studio.
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With the partial opening of the Studio and collaboration
with a resourceful company, it is believed that it will
generate a favorable income and bring substantial gain to
the Group as enormous synergistic effect will be created
and more tourists will be attracted.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group will cooperate with
the wedding photography company through the leasing of
the Studio with an area of approximately 20 mu
(13,338.33 square metres) for a term of 12 years and the
wedding photography company will invest RMB10 million
for the construction of scenic spots in different styles
such as European, Korean and Japanese styles and
guarantee there will be at least 28,800 couples taking
wedding photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual
income of this arrangement will be no less than
approximately RMB1.2 million starting from 2016.

Hotels

A b5-star hotel next to the Studio and facilitated from
deluxe suites to economic standard rooms to cater to
tourists’ needs has been constructed. The Hotel features
a modern European design with luxurious fabrics and
hues of yellow and gold, the suites are lavishly furnished
with a collection of furniture in grand design. The Group
acts ahead in providing thoughtful services to meet the
needs of the guests such as SPA, Business Centre,
Modern Swimming Pool and Shifter Kart which allow our
guests to have a splashing good time.

350 suites would be provided and it is one of the most
luxurious and distinctive hotels in the region. The Group
would seek opportunities to provide comprehensive
services with additional facilities to cater tourists’ needs.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhu Hai.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and had commenced its operation since May
2014 which supports further comprehensive development
of the Group’s entertainment and culture business.
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Artiste Management

Subsequent to the completion and commencement of
operation of the Studio, and with the huge market of
domestic movies, the Group will recruit more artists with
potential in the future to cope with the demands in the
vast market. Apart from the films produced by the Group,
our artists Rose Chan, Brian Yuen, Rachel Chau, Kitson
Shum and Marvel Chow will also perform and participate
in different shows and events. Besides, the Group will
identify suitable institutions for them to serve as
spokespersons and participate in advertising photography.
The Group will continue to recruit artists with potential
and expand the artiste management segment, hoping that
it will become one of the major income sources of the
Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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EAEE

BEEFRBERRBEARE TERBRAEZK
BAME - AKRERREABEZAELANEA
A VBB FERE 5 F K o FRASE B BUE
MEFIN AEBETEARERE EH B
A ERAREET I 2ESEEL LA
AN REENTERESNEAERBEEINS
ARSEESHRE AEEREEREGERALE
BOEAN BABAEESE  RZOBXNAEE
BEEBRAKIREZ— -

Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities nEEE
Current ratio VLIS

ROERRHUBER
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E—AF —T—NEF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERX) (= =Z)
61,170 52,392
483,069 402,127
12.7% 13.0%

Current ratio as at 30 June 2015 was 12.7% (31
December 2014: 13.0%). As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s
total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$2.2 million (31 December 2014: total
negative cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$1.1 million).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend payment of an interim
dividend for the period ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

R-E—RAFEANA=1THENARILZRAEI27% (==
—MFE+-A=+—H:13.0%) - RZZE—HF X
A=+B ZA&EHELEERESZEEEEY
2,200,000 L (ZE—WF+=-_A=+—H: 831
& RIS F(EIEB 541,100,000/ 7T) °

k&

EETEBRNEBE T —AFA=+HIHME
B ER B (=~ ) -




Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of
the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at 30
June 2015, 3,331,722,816 ordinary shares were issued
and fully paid.
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BXXBREGULE

AR NR_EZ_F+A+ B EBRATAI%E
REW - ARBBRAERS LB R_T—HF
NA=1H - #£E3,331,722,816 A% O 3 17 L &1 B %

REBERK -

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

—E—-AEA~A=1+H —E-NF+-A=1+—H
Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
&8 HE % T8 ¥ %

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEX) (EE=)

HK$°000 HK$'000

TH&ET FHET
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 8,453 0.4% 8,524 0.5%

Loans from a related —H@BAR®

company =& 12,400 0.6% 12,400 0.7%
Loans from shareholders N ON= 47,450 2.2% 44,240 2.7%
Borrowings BE 374,000 17.6% 161,600 10%
Promissory note A R 75,016 3.5% — —
Bonds &5 30,100 1.4% 79,946 5%
Convertible bonds AR R 5 360,639 17.0% 206,642 12.9%
Finance lease obligation B 5 7 B R 20,199 1.0% 19,249 1.2%
Total borrowings BEERE 928,257 43.7% 532,601 33%
Equity T 7 1,194,932 56.3% 1,072,474 67%
Total capital employed FriE AMERNBEE 2,123,189 100.0% 1,605,075 100.0%

The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 43.7% as at
30 June 2015 (31 December 2014: 33.2%). The increase
in the gearing ratio was due to the issue of bonds,
convertible bonds and finance lease obligation during the
period. If the bonds (liabilities component), convertible
bonds (liability component) and finance lease obligation
amounted to approximately HK$30.1 million, approximately
HK$360.6 million and approximately HK$20.2 million
respectively, were to be excluded, the underlying gearing
ratio was 24.3% (2014: 14.1%) only.

RIB-—RHEXNA=1tH AEENABGLRNAE
437% (ZE—MNF+-F=+—H:33.2%) > B1&
LEE EATIHRBERNETES  TBRBRESFRYB
HMEARAEMB - EHMBEFEEIT DD
30,100,000 T » Al # K & H(A & 2B 2) 8
360,600,000 7T & B 7% H & % ¥ £720,200,0007%
L A AaEL RE B243% (ZF — Y F:
14.1%) o
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Issuance of bonds with unlisted warrants, convertible
bonds and promissory note

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
remaining equity interests in HRL and EPL, the Company
issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$420 million on 2 October
2013. The convertible bonds has a maturity of 3 years
from the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 4%
per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears.

Meanwhile, as part of the consideration of the acquisition
of Lux Unicorn Limited and obtainment of the land use
right in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement dated 22 December 2014, the Company
issued convertible bonds and promissory note amounting
to HK$300 million and HK$80 million on 15 April 2015
respectively. The convertible bonds has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bears coupon interest at
9% per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. The promissory note has a maturity of 3 years
from the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 9%
per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is in Hong Kong dollars.
During the reporting period for the six months ended 30
June 2015, most of the transactions, assets and liabilities
of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. During the period under review, since the
Group had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
receipts and payments, the net Renminbi exposure was
not significant. The Board considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant;
therefore, no hedging transaction was made during the
period under review.

Commitments

Details of the Group’s commitments are set out in note
20.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 15 April 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited (the “Target
Company”), which was beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Sin (the “Vendor”). The Target Company is principally
engaged in the sourcing and execution of investment
opportunities for real estate development projects in the
PRC. Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the Target
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group and the financial results of the Target Company is
consolidated into the Group.
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BITMEALGEREENRS  TREKESFRE
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ERKRBERRAKFFRRNGRARRNED
RE FRBAR_Z-—=F+A_RBETASEH
#) /5420,000,00078 7T & A #2 i & 75 o AT 4 B & 55
BETEMEF=FH ERRFNRI%ER
Rit ABRBFFRIAM -

R EAREASRA-_ZT—NF+_A=-+=H
MEEHZRERBERARRES L ERE
BEHORE AR FR_E—REMNA+HEART
% %8 /300,000,000 T AR ELEREEA
80,000,000/8 LR & H E i - A MREHFBEITH
R =F28 ZEBRFANEI%THRZF I
ARBFFARAIMN - AR BEEFHTHBRF=F
iiﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬂm%azﬁ C WBREFF

I Ja B

AEFBRETIERERER -NBE_T-—RHFRN
A=tBILANERREHRME  AEBARTEORS
BENBBEHNETRAREEE - REBEHRE
HALE D B A BT R A RBWCRAF - #A
RERBRFELITEKN -BEFERR - AEE@ER
Egﬁl\lfﬁlﬁkﬁﬁjﬁKEK * B (Bl R B R N E T
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ELKBREE

R-ZB-HFMA+HE  AEERBREEE(E
2B EaBAcEBAERAR(ERARDZ
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g BRERRRAAEE-—H2EHBAR B
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Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

On 16 July 2015, in contemplation of the entering into of
the Placing Agreement in relation to the Placing, the
Company and the Placing Agent have mutually agreed to
terminate the Previous Placing Agreement in relation to
the placing of the 8% per annum bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of up to approximately HK$200 million
maturing on the seventh anniversary of the date of issue
with immediate effect, whereupon the parties’ respective
obligations have ceased and terminated. For avoidance of
doubt, 8% per annum bonds which have been issued by
the Company pursuant to the Previous Placing Agreement
before 16 July 2015 shall continue to have effect, and
holders of such bonds will not be affected by the
termination of the Previous Placing Agreement.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the bonds will be
used for the future expansion of and investment in the
film shooting studio and hotels, and the improvement in
the Group’s cash flow management.

Contingent Liabilities

At 30 June 2015, the Company had corporate guarantee
of approximately HK$12.4 million (at 31 December 2014:
approximately HK$12.4 million) given to a related company
to secure loans to NA Entertainment. No provision for the
Company’s obligation under the guarantee contract has
been made as the directors considered that the fair value
of the leasehold land and building being pledged to bank
exceeds the carrying amount of the loan and it is not
probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under the guarantee contract.

Use of Proceeds from Rights issue

With reference to the resolution passed in the Special
General Meeting held on 4 July 2014, the Company
raised net proceeds of approximately HK$448.6 million
from the issuance of 2,475,762,414 rights shares of
HK$0.188 each on the basis of six rights shares for every
consolidated share. The net proceeds was used up by the
end of year 2014 with details summarized as follows:
approximately HK$158.5 million was used for repayment
of liabilities of the Group, including loans and accrued
interests, approximately HK$241.8 million was used to
redeem the outstanding CBs and the accrued interests,
and the remaining net proceeds of approximately
HK$48.3 million was utilized for general working capital of
the Group including the settlement for construction cost
of the film studio and hotel of the Group in the PRC.

B P o A

AREAREAELXNEE NS

R-Z—AFt A+ 8 EARREMRESSEE
FINIEERE  MARRHEEREE-—REER
LA ERBF(RAEHEErABE RS EN
200,000,000 TR B {THHE L RAFE B 2F R
8% 2 EH) WA K MW AFZEZETHE
NI - BRER ARBIREARESHER
—E-—HF AT ANBRCETIFE NI EEFE
HEEW MEBEFZFEBEABTXAE S &
BIEFTR -

BIEFZMEFREFEBREZRRIBEZ
AEREEMRENARBEAEEZRSRERTE

HHER

R-E—RHENA=ZTH ARAH—HEHEE QR
EH £ 58 4)/512,400,0008 L (A2 —MNFE+—5
=+—H: #712,400,000/8 7)) D EER - (EAE
BRMBERETNER HREERAEIF TR
TNHEELHWEEFNAAEBREERNERE
BARBTAAIERAZERAOMPER - Atk
ERARRFRERANOTOETELEE -

BRZFERERE

ZIRMR TN FE- ANBRT2REERAS
FTEBZARE ARRBBRE—BREHFBRHG
TEBD B SRR AR I IR 1 2 H AEEE1T2,475,762,414 % &
fEEE0.188 B L 2 ety - BBEFHIBFE
#49448,600,000/8 T - FTEF B FREE R T — Y
FERLEEA  FHEBAT - 4158,500,000
BTAREEAEBE B BREERLEF
B) ~ #9241,800,0007% JT B A BE B AR 17 (5 Al 2 IR (&
5K FERTF B - MER T FT15 5k I8 )% %8 448,300,000
BTAAERAEE —MEEES (BIEENAE
BRPBEZ MBS ZERKA) -
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The completion of a major and connected transaction

A resolution proposed in the Special General Meeting held
on 10 April 2015 was duly passed by the shareholders by
way of poll and reference is made to the circular issued
by the Company on 23 March 2015. The Group entered
into the sale and purchase agreement to purchase the
entire issued share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited and
obtained the land use right with a total site area of
approximately 368.33 mu. The Group management
expected the development of those nearby areas would
bring along a new height of the Xigiao National Arts
Studio Project.

In regard to the Acquisition in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014,
Promissory Note 1 amounting to HK$80 million and
Convertible Bonds amounting to HK$300 million have
been issued to the Vendor or its nominee, while the
remaining HK$20 million Promissory Note 2 will only be
issued subject to the obtaining of the land use rights
certificate in relation to the No-Certificate Land.
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TH—EEXRHEXS

—HER_E-AFNATHBTZRREH RS
REZABRCERFRUARERAZ FALEAR
B WRAARARR-_ZB-—HF=A-+=HFF#
2Bk AREBEFVEEGZBERBARAR
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ZEERE e  AREERERY  AEZFH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted and the Post-IPO Share

o e

Jile B¢ B it 0

BREARBAE—RER_ZZT_F+A+=HZ
EERZER - ARRI AR RA R E SR AR
AR BRESE - ZATEl 2 EZHEAHNAH
RIZE_FTANAZARRBR RN D
A o

BREARRR-_ZE-ZFAA-FTNAARTZRE
FRAELBBZRER  —AMNBRETS
(T3 ARt &1 ) R - M AR AR EK
*EH*J%& CIE o FTEBRR ARG &2 E RIRKFMNA
ARBHMA-T-TFEAANAZBEAN -
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Option Scheme was terminated. The principal terms of the
New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 6 September 2010.

EXLRBRERBRETE

R-ZE—RFEA=F+H" *E%Féxxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁféﬁ%
A 5T B3R i ] R AR F A $£12,096,3250% i%
D2 AR R ETTIE - m_ﬁ AEXNA=1H
ZERXARABREERETIFBOT:

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 30 June 2015, the share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 12,096,325 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 30 June 2015 are set out as follows:

Number of share options

ERERE
Outstanding
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Category of price per 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
participants share Date of grant 2015 period period period 2015
® R-®-A%F
(=13 —¥-IfF ~A=+H
EZPNF: TEE REBY —A—B HARd BT LU it K 17 (%
(HK$)
(B 7)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 33,292 - — - 33,292
Bx —T-ZTHFRA+T=H
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 91,905 — — — 91,905
% —ZT-ZFHA=-+H
Directors 2.89 29 September 2010 11,971,128 — — — 11,971,128
£F —T-TFEAA=TIA
Total
FER 12,096,325 — — — 12,096,325
New Share Option Scheme HEREE
In accordance with the proposed resolution in Annual BER=ZZE—HF/A :‘HL BRITZBRRBAFA

General Meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2015, the g(RFBERG]) FREZARE  BEIER
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share T iﬂ&ﬂi’&_ﬁf ﬂﬁ{ﬂﬁﬁﬁxi’éﬁ' BBt E%foé
cheme and any other share option schemes of b . IR 3 EE%E:Z&HE—%ZSS 838,9 Sﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁ
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based on 2,888,389,483 Shares in issue (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised under the New Share Option Scheme) (the
“Refreshed Scheme Limit”"); and the Directors are
authorized, at their absolute discretion, to grant share
options to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of the Share
Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit; and to do such acts and execute such documents
for or incidental to implement the Share Option Scheme
within the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

As at 30 June 2015, the share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 8,838,012 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the New Share Option
Scheme as at 30 June 2015 are set out as follows:

120 25 158 4 SO Ak 4 P AT PR 28

B2 WRITE G RRHTEZE
BRAEBRIN(TEFHEIRED) IEREFEED
1B AR 15 B B v ot 8 2 AR R AT R B8 AR M) 2 BB R
% BEUAEFAERBELSR  NIREBERE S
PRz B EITER - B3 HITREER
0 BEUEHMAERELR  RERNEFHTE
REBEANNTERRASFLERBTIREYL
BRAXM -

MN-Z—RENA=1H REFHERESZEL
Al R AR E) A $£8,838,0120% A% 17 2 B B AE i oK
ETE R -_E—RFANA=ZTHZHERETE
EI=R (NS

Number of share options

BiREYNE
Outstanding
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Category of price per 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
participants share Date of grant 2015 period period period 2015
7 NZT—-hF
=34 —¥-—-4af ~H=+H
2mAE5l TEE REBH —A—H HARH HRITE BN & & 1T 1
(HK$)
(B 7T)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 8,232,987 — — — 8,232,987
£F —T——F=A=-+)\H
Directors 5.59 31 March 2012 605,025 — - — 605,025
£F —T——-F=ZA=+—H
Total
FEE 8,838,012 — — — 8,838,012

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

EHRREERITBANER B - M
B8 Iz Oy B 15 27 2 HE 2% Je IR A

As at 30 June 2015, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

REZE-—AFANA=+H  ARAEERTETH
ABURiRES B 2 B8 ARA AR 8B AT (7 18 B
EBCEZE AR SR ME R (75 R BE R
SEXVER) 2 B fn MBI DR ESRES REE 5
KB G FEXVEEIR£80 B2 HER X E K
y R P21 wKE(BRERE
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ipilikees’
were required to be notified to the Company and the HEKIBEBEXHEERESIRABER 2 E= KK
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV B) ARBEBFLERAEKROEIGZHREEE
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which RRZERRMERMAzERD RRE - HIRIEA
they were taken or deemed to have under such ER EMRAES.4616 2 3R FBMEART R

provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant FrzEm AR ImT:
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to

Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company 1. RELGRHBZEHE
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Interest in share capital
Capacity/ Number of controlled of the
Name of Directors Nature of interest shares corporation Total Company
R A
REEHAT ERTHREZ
EEna S EEME 38 4= 2D @it #MHEsk
(@) The Company (Ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each)
(@) ARE(FREECIETLZ
LEk)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 1) Beneficial owner 683,473,000 — 683,473,000 20.51%
5 B RS A (T A1) EmBEA
Interest of spouse 23,352,000 - 23,352,000 0.70%
Bic 18 7 2=
Ms. Law Po Yee (Note 2) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 — 23,352,000 0.70%
BER L (W i72) EEHEA
Interest of spouse 683,473,000 — 683,473,000 20.51%
BL (B =
Note 1: Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned Kiatt e I B 4+ %5 9 5 706,825,0000% A%
706,825,000 Shares, representing approximately 7 AEARRRBEITRAL21.21%  BiE
21.21% of the issued share capital of the FERBAEKRD - BT OREEZERB)
Company. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Law, the WR AR AR 2B R Rk
spouse of Mr. Sin, is deemed to be interested in BERER -
all the Shares in which Mr. Sin was interested.
Note 2: Ms. Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin and is deemed Hato: Bt RESEZERB - MR BRER
to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Sin is ERBEFHFRAEGRANBERAREIEESR

deemed or taken to be interested for the Hm P HEE R -
purpose of the SFO.
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apilikEgs:

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company

i Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

120 25 158 4 SO Ak 4 P AT PR 28

2. BEFAGRGHEF

EPNGEEE S R

Number of share options

EREYE
Outstanding
Exercise As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
price per 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
Details of grantees Date of grant share Exercisable period 2015 period period period 2015
R-F-HE
=34 RZB-1% ~A=+H
REAHE RHBH fTERE TEHE —-A—-B HARYH HATE BAXY ief K AT &
(HK$)
(87)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam 29 September 2010 2.89 29 September 2010 to 7,964,160 - - - 7,964,160
(Non-executive 2 September 2020
Director)
GEREEGERTES) Z2-ZFAAZTAA “Z-TZFEAAZTNABE
“E-EENAACH
Ms. Law Po Yee 29 September 2010 2.89 29 September 2010 to 3,982,080 — — — 3,982,080
(Executive Director) 2 September 2020
BERRL(MTESE) Z—T-TEAAZTAB —Z-ZFEAAZTNEE
ZZZZENAZH
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 29 September 2010 2.89 29 September 2010 to 24,888 - - - 24,888
(Executive Director) 2 September 2020
BARREE@TESE) ZT-TFALAZTAA ZZ-ZFEAAZTIEE
“ZZZENAZH
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 20 May 2010 3.38 20 May 2010 to 25,065 - - - 25,065
(Non-executive 19 May 2020
Director)
THREE(FNITES) —T-FFRA-TH —Z-ZERA-+AZE
“E-ZEERATNE
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 13 May 2010 3.66 13 May 2010 to 33,292 - - - 33,292
(Independent 12 May 2020
Non-executive
Director)
EFLCEE “Z-ZFRA+=A —Z-TFRA+=AZE
(BIEHTES) —Z-ZERATZH
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor 20 May 2010 3.38 20 May 2010 to 33,420 - - - 33,420
(Independent 19 May 2020
Non-executive
Director)
BRI E “Z-ZERACTH “T-TERRCTHE
(BUFHTES) “R-RFRATAR
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, 20 May 2010 3.38 20 May 2010 to 33,420 - - - 33,420
Patrick (Independent 19 May 2020
Non-executive
Director)
HEENE “T-TERACTA “T-TFEACEE

(BuEHTES)

—F-Z€RA+NA
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i, New Share Option Scheme i,

Number of share options

EBRiEYE
Outstanding
Exercise As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
price per 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
Details of grantees  Date of grant share Exercisable period 2015 period period period 2015
RZE-If
sk R-¥-5% ~A=+H
REANFE RHAH fTEE TEYR —-A—-B HARYE HATE HAXY it K 17 1
(HK$)
(Br)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Non- 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 3,360,403 - - - 3,360,403
executive Director) 27 March 2021
el et —E——%=A=t/\B “Z-—§=AZ+N\RHZE
(EHTES) ZZ--f=f=t++tA
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 134,450 - - - 134,450
30 March 2017
—Z-—FZf=+-A —Z-—§=fA=t+-HZ%
—Z—+F=R=+H
Ms. Law Po Yee 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 3,360,403 - - - 3,360,403
(Executive Director) 27 March 2021
BERLTBTES) —T-—F=A-t/A “E--%ZA-tNREZE
ZE--FZA-ttH
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 134,450 - - - 134,450
30 March 2017
—E-Z§=fA=1-H “Z-—f=A=+-HZ
—Z-tEZA=+H
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 58,807 - - - 58,807
(Executive Director) 27 March 2021
FARSEE(@TESE) —T——F=A-T/N\AR ZZ-Z§=AZ+N\HZE
—E--f=A=ttAH
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
30 March 2017
—E-—F=R=1-H ZZ——§=A=+—-HZ%
—T-tF=A=+H
Ms. Sin Ho Yee 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 1,344,161 - - - 1,344,161
(Executive Director) 27 March 2021
RERLTBTES) —F-—F=A=+/\R ZE-Zf=A-tN\RE
—Z--F=ZA=-t+tH
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 50,419 - - - 50,419

—Z--F£Zf=+-A

30 March 2017
—¥--#=A=f-A%
—T-t%=A=1H
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[fipiii=w=
Number of share options
BRiEYE
Outstanding
Exercise As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
price per 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
Details of grantees  Date of grant share Exercisable period 2015 period period period 2015
RZB-5%E
Bk RZ¥-1% ~A=+H
REAHE REBH fTEE TEAR -A-8 HARE HATE HAER iel % 17 1
(HKS)
(B 7)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 8,401 - - - 8,401
(Non-executive 27 March 2021
Director)
EY —IT——FZA-tNR “Z——§=AZ+N\HZE
(FH1TES) —Z--f=A=ttAH
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 16,806 - - - 16,806
30 March 2017
—Z--F=Zf=1+-A —Z-—§=fA=+-HZ%
—Z-+F=ZR=+H
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 33,604 - - - 33,604
Robert (Independent 27 March 2021
Non-executive
Director)
EECEE —Z——F=A=1NR —Z-—f=A=+/\RZE
(BUFERTES) —ZT--5ZA=-t+A
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
30 March 2017
—Z--f=f=1+-A —Z-—f=fA=t+-HZ
—T—+tF=A=TtH
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 33,604 — — — 33,604
Trevor (Independent 27 March 2021
Non-executive
Director)
BRRILESE —Z——f=ZfA=t/NR “Z-—f=ZAZtN\HZE
(BUEHTES) —E--#ZfF-t++A
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
30 March 2017
—E-ZF=fA=1-H ZZ-—§=fA=+-HZ%
—Z—tE5ZA=+H
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, 28 March 2011 7.62 28 March 2012 to 33,604 - - - 33,604
Patrick (Independent 27 March 2021
Non-executive
Director)
ERERR “3-—FZA=HNR :
(BIEHTES) —Z--f=A=ttAH
31 March 2012 5.59 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
30 March 2017
—Z--F=Zf=1+-A —Z-—§=fA=+-HZ%

—E-tFZAZtA




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONSY’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company

INTERIM REPORT 2015 % f4F th it
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MRZF-—RFRNA=TH REZREFNMBERK
PIEXVEPE36HZ M EATFE ZE LML
B RARRCDESITAE T ALIEE (R
ARBEFHLEBITRABINRARA ZBH K
KD EERRIAR

1. REZGRHZHE

Approximate percentage of
No. of the issued share capital of

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held the Company
BARAFERTREZ

BREREE 5% BERBHE BmyHESE

Chan Ting Lai Beneficial owner 529,587,833 15.90%

PR 18 EmBEAA

Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 563,547,600 16.91%

H R BEmfBA

EMPLOYEE AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

The director of the board (the “Directors”) believe that the
quality of its employees is the most important factor in
sustaining the Group’s growth and improving its
profitability. The Group’s remunerates its employees based
as their performances, experience and prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operation due to
labour disputes nor has it experienced any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The
Directors believe that the Group has a good working
relationship with its employees.

1 B K %7 I 23R

Exesgs((E5)ME BREEXEAKER
BRERIRUEBNENZHEZ - AKENES
HMDORIERR  ERERERTEBIETE - K
EXFERBEHERERI  AEETRHER
REFERBRESZETREN -

AEEREAEEEZHY BELETMANEKREE T
BRSEMHMoIBZEXDTE  AEEKRE
TZHRERBEBITENEEBEMRNE - EEH
E-AKBREEEHFSRIFIIFERE -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR == L NN o e
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED

SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2015, neither the HE_Z-—AFRA=TRHILAER  KARAIRE
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or FAMBARMEEEXNBELEARARAF M LME
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities. % o

COMPETING INTERESTS i HE i

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the EFNANAEEERF(ERRAIER EMRAD
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their IFEESTECHEAMERNBEREEEKBRR
respective associates had any interest, whether directly or FRAREENRFCESP RN EESEE
indirectly, in a business which competes or may compete M o

with the business of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ®*BREEH

The Company has established an audit committee (the ARRERZZEZE-_FRUBEZZES((BE%REE
“Audit Committee”) in 2002 with written terms of gl ﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁa&ﬁéﬁul BRIIAEER - F|
reference, which deal clearly with its authorities and REEEITEBEARABMARAIZFR LMK
duties. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to Wk PHRERFERS j’[ﬁi“ﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
review the Company’s annual reports and financial AP NEEELBRESEEHE ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ %’f?
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and ZECHRKNERENZRBLIFENTESE D54
discuss with the management over issues relating to BEECKE(ER) BRI AE & E%%ﬂ%&$
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit B2

Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak
Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The Group’s unaudited results for the six months ended ERZEEDENASEEEE S —RFA=T
30 June 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit AIEAEAZKREERRE BRRAUREEE
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation BERAzEHENRRERE  WEELTSE
of such results has complied with applicable accounting &

standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (o N ]

The Company is committed to maintaining a high $Qﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ*§%7}<$ﬂ:#E/Dﬁ*ﬂ&iﬁiﬁ’EIE
standard of corporate governance practices and AREFBRGEAMNG  ANRESHERELrE2
procedures with an aim to maximising the shareholders’ FREREEGE - BHE_T—RFA A=T
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ AIENEA - ARF B BT AR iR A 815
transparency and accountability. In this respect, the PRk 8 A<t Rl 2 A SFRIMEX -

Company has complied with all of the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules during the six
months ended 30 June 2015.

The Company has prepared a corporate governance RRARE L BEI ER _Em#R A 5518.44(2) {5 R & 4>
report in accordance with Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM XERBE WHRARRZ—F-MEFRHA -

Rulesrd to the 2014 annual report of the




MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the six months ended 30 June
2015.

By Order of the Board
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
Law Po Yee
Vice Chairperson, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 7 August 2015
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Law Po Yee

Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Ms. Sin Ho Yee

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Man Hung

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Law Po Yee

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Units 3011B—12, 30/F

West Tower Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Law Po Yee
Mr. Chow Kai Weng

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Nomination Committee

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
Mr. Li Kit Chee
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228
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